
          

 

 

CENTURY GARDENS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 10, 2017 
6:30 P.M. 

 
 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
6625 Miami Lakes Drive, Suite 374 

Miami Lakes, FL 33014 

www.centurygardenscdd.org 
305.777.0761 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
 

AGENDA 
 CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

The Mater Gardens Academy Charter School - Cafeteria 
9010 NW 178th Lane 

Miami, FL 33018  
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

October 10, 2017 
6:30 p.m. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. May 23, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Minutes…………………………………………………...Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Revised Annexation Agreement – Silver Springs Lennar, LLC…………..Page 10 

H. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Hurricane “Irma” and Post Storm Community Clean-Up 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2017-06 – Adopting Amended FY 2016/2017 Final Budget…………..Page 18 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Report…………………………………………………………………………………...Page 24 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



Page 1



CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 23, 2017 

1 of 8  

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The May 23, 2017, Regular Board Meeting of the Century Gardens Community Development 
District was called to order at 6:40 p.m. in the Cafeteria of the Mater Gardens Academy Charter 
School located at 9010 NW 178th Lane, Miami, Florida 33018. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 

Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in 
the Miami Daily Business Review on March 1, 2017, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2016/2017 
Regular Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. DECLARE VACANCY AND SEAT NEW BOARD MEMBERS 
 
Mr. Silva advised that no one had qualified for Seat #3 (currently held by Abel Fernandez) during 
the qualifying period for the 2016 General Election for the Century Gardens Community 
Development District (the “District”).  As a result, it would be in order to declare a vacancy in Seat 
#3, effective as of May 23, 2017.  A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Ruiz, seconded by Mr. Farhan and unanimously passed declaring a 
vacancy (currently held by the incumbent, Abel Fernandez) in Seat #3 of the District’s Board, 
effective as of May 23, 2017; and the Board shall appoint a qualified elector to fill said vacancy. 
 
Mr. Silva stated that there was a vacancy in Seat #3 and asked if there were any interested persons 
who would like to serve on the Board of Supervisors of the District.  Mr. Abel Fernandez, a qualified 
resident of the State of Florida, stated that he was interested in serving on the Board of Supervisors 
of the District.  A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Ruiz, seconded by Mr. Farhan and unanimously passed to appoint 
Mr. Abel Fernandez to serve the unexpired 4-year term of office in Seat #3 and such term of office 
will expire in November 2020. 
 
District Counsel Ginger Wald, Notary Public in the State of Florida, administered the Oath of Office 
to Abel Fernandez and reminded him of his duties and responsibilities with emphasis on the 
Sunshine Law, Financial Disclosure, Public Records Law and the Code of Ethics for Public 
Officials. 
 
Mr. Silva stated that no one had qualified for Seat #4 (currently held by Daniele Ranaudo) during 
the qualifying period for the 2016 General Election for the District.  As a result, it would be in order 
to declare a vacancy in Seat #4, effective as of May 23, 2017. A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Ruiz, seconded by Mr. Farhan and unanimously passed declaring a 
vacancy (currently held by the incumbent, Daniele Ranaudo) in Seat #4 of the District’s Board, 
effective as of May 23, 2017; and the Board shall appoint a qualified elector to fill said vacancy. 
 

Page 2



CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 23, 2017 

2 of 8  

Mr. Silva stated that there was a vacancy in Seat #4 and asked if there were any interested persons 
who would like to serve on the Board of Supervisors of the District.  Mr. Daniele Ranaudo, a 
qualified resident of the State of Florida, stated that he was interested in serving on the Board of 
Supervisors of the District.  A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Ruiz, seconded by Mr. Farhan and unanimously passed to appoint 
Mr. Daniele Ranaudo to serve the unexpired 4-year term of office in Seat #4 and such term of office 
will expire in November 2020. 

 
Ms. Wald, Notary Public in the State of Florida, administered the Oath of Office to Daniele Ranaudo 
and reminded him of his duties and responsibilities with emphasis on the Sunshine Law, Financial 
Disclosure, Public Records Law and the Code of Ethics for Public Officials.   
 
Mr. Silva stated that no one had qualified for Seat #5 (currently held by Shirley Villalobos) during 
the qualifying period for the 2016 General Election for the District.  As a result, it would be in order 
to declare a vacancy in Seat #5, effective as of May 23, 2017. A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Ruiz, seconded by Mr. Ranaudo and unanimously passed declaring 
a vacancy (currently held by the incumbent, Shirley Villalobos) in Seat #5 of the District’s Board, 
effective as of May 23, 2017; and the Board shall appoint a qualified elector to fill said vacancy. 
 
Mr. Silva stated that there was a vacancy in Seat #5 and asked if there were any interested persons 
who would like to serve on the Board of Supervisors of the District.  Ms. Shirley Villalobos, a 
qualified resident of the State of Florida, stated that he was interested in serving on the Board of 
Supervisors of the District.  A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Ruiz, seconded by Mr. Fernandez and unanimously passed to appoint 
Ms. Shirley Villalobos to serve the unexpired 4-year term of office in Seat #5 and such term of office 
will expire in November 2020. 
 
Since Ms. Villalobos was not physically in attendance, Mr. Silva indicated that he would provide 
her with an Oath of Office form with instructions to take the Oath of Office as soon as possible. 
 
D. RE-ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Mr. Silva stated that as a result of today’s appointments to the Board and due to the General Election 
results of November 8, 2016, it would be in order to re-elect officers to the District Board of 
Supervisors.  The following names were suggested for election: 

 
    Chairperson – Abraham Farhan 
    Vice Chairperson – Shirley Villalobos 
    Secretary/Treasurer – Armando Silva 
 Assistant Secretaries – Abel Fernández, Daniele Ranaudo, Nildo Ruiz, Gloria Perez 

and Neil Kalin 
 

Page 3



CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 23, 2017 

3 of 8  

A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Ranaudo, seconded by Mr. Farhan and unanimously passed to elect 
the officers of the Century Gardens Community Development District Board of Supervisors, as 
listed above.  
 
E. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
It was determined that the attendance of Chairman Abraham Farhan, Vice Chairperson Shirley 
Villalobos and Supervisor Nildo Ruiz constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the 
meeting: 
 
Staff in attendance included: District Managers Gloria Perez and Armando Silva of Special District 
Services, Inc.; and General Counsel Ginger Wald of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, 
P.A. 
 
Also present were Luis Moreno of Miami, Florida; and Osvaldo Santiestevez of Miami, Florida. 
 
F. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA. 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
G. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  April 10, 2017, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the April 10, 2017, Regular Board Meeting were presented for approval. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Ruiz, seconded by Mr. Farhan and passed unanimously passed to 
approve the minutes of the April 10, 2017, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
At approximately 8:00 p.m., Mr. Silva recessed the Regular Meeting and simultaneously opened the 
Public Hearing for the purpose of receiving public comments on the fiscal year 2017/2018 final 
budget and assessments. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Public Hearing had been published in the Miami 
Daily Business Review on May 3, 2017, and May 10, 2017, as legally required.  
 
 2.  Receive Public Comment on the Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Final Budget 

Page 4



CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 23, 2017 

4 of 8  

 
Mr. Silva opened the public comment portion of the Public Hearing to receive comments on the 
fiscal year 2017/2018 final budget and non-ad valorem special assessments.  
 
There being no comments on the fiscal year 2017/2018 budget and assessments, Mr. Silva closed 
the public comment portion of the Public Hearing. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2017-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Final Budget 
 
Mr. Silva presented Resolution No. 2017-03, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE CENTURY 
GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING AND  
ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 BUDGET INCLUDING NON-AD 
VALOREM SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  

 
Mr. Silva read the title of the resolution into the record and stated that it provides for approving and 
adopting the Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Final Budget and the non-ad valorem special assessment tax 
roll.   
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Ruiz, seconded by Mr. Farhan and unanimously passed to adopt 
Resolution No. 2017-03, approving the Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Final Budget, as presented, setting 
the fiscal year 2017/2018 Final Budget and non-ad valorem special assessment tax roll (Assessment 
Levy). 
 
At approximately 8:09 p.m., Mr. Silva closed the Public Hearing and simultaneously reconvened 
the Regular Meeting. 
 
J. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update Regarding Lennar Expansion Project - (this item was discussed prior to 
agenda item I.1.) 
 
Mrs. Perez informed the District Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) that Mr. Silva and herself had 
communicated with Mr. Angel Rodriguez and Ms. Maria C. Herrera (“Lennar Staff”) of Lennar 
Homes LLC (“Lennar”) regarding the counteroffer requested by “the Board” (accepting the $60,000 
offer from Lennar, only if Lennar agreed to coordinate all of the Entrance Improvement Projects 
(landscaping improvements along NW 179th  Lane and 87th Avenue and the refurbishing of the 
entrance monument features) in their entirety; from planning, to permitting, engagement of 
contractors and professionals, scheduling of work, through completion of work), after which Lennar 
Staff had initially agreed with the request made by the Board and had started the agreement 
negotiations based on the Board’s direction.  Mrs. Perez then explained that late this afternoon, Ms. 
Herrera (Sr. Land Acquisition Manager for Lennar) had called her to explain that Lennar cannot 

Page 5



CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 23, 2017 

5 of 8  

abide by the requests made by the Board.  As a result, Mrs. Perez recommended that Ms. Herrera 
call in to the meeting so that she can negotiate directly with the Board and address any questions or 
concerns the Board may have. 

   
At approximately 7:23 p.m., Ms. Herrera joined the meeting via conference call. 
 
Ms. Herrera greeted the Board and explained her role within Lennar.  She then stated that the reason 
why the counteroffer made by the Board had been declined was due to Lennar’s Staff time 
constraints.  In addition, coordination of certain aspects of the Entrance Improvement Project, such 
as the landscape design plans, would be easily done with communication between the contractor and 
the District, instead of with Lennar Staff.  In return, Lennar would provide permit running services 
in order to facilitate the permitting process with Miami-Dade County (the “County”),as well as 
providing the District with guidance as needed and providing Lennar’s vender list with Lennar’s 
rates. 
 
Mr. Ruiz asked Ms. Herrera, “How did Lennar calculate $60,000 as the total amount of funding to 
be provided to the District for the Entrance Improvements Project?”  Ms. Herrera responded by 
stating that rough calculations were made by Lennar’s staff, based upon the removal and replacement 
of the royal palms with live oaks along the median located along NW 179th Lane.   
 
At approximately 7:50 p.m., Mr. Fernandez excused himself from the meeting. 
 
Mr. Farhan stated that he would like to see these requests in the form of an agreement after which 
District Counsel Ginger Wald explained that an annexation agreement had been drafted prior to the 
meeting and was ready to present before the aforementioned information from Lennar had been 
provided.  Mr. Farhan also asked Ms. Herrera what the result of the Board not approving the 
annexation process would mean to Lennar after which Ms. Herrera responded that Lennar has other 
options available, such as creating their own community development district and that the offer of 
$60,000 from Lennar to the District is not an obligation or requirement per the County.  Annexing 
the Turquesa community into the District will add approximately $20,000-$30,000 to the District 
fund balance (per year), which will be produced from assessing the Turquesa townhome units for 
Operations & Maintenance expenses associated with the maintenance of public infrastructure within 
the District (debt assessments will not change for the original units and the expansion units as a 
result of the annexation).  If the District declines the offer from Lennar, the District will lose the 
opportunity for an external source of funding for the Entrance Improvements Project. 
 
Pursuant to lengthy discussions and addressing inquiries from the public and the Board, District 
Counsel Wald recapped, that Lennar is agreeing to the following:  to pay $60,000 to the District for 
Improvements, provide permitting services with the County for the Improvements plans, provide the 
names and contact information for Lennar’s vendors, contractors and design professionals for 
Improvements by the District and provide the District with the schedule of work by Lennar to 
coordinate the construction of the monument improvements with Lennar’s contractors.   
  
The District will receive the funds from Lennar after the approval of the annexation so that the 
District may begin the process of hiring the necessary professionals to commence the planning stages 

Page 6



CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 23, 2017 

6 of 8  

of the Entrance Improvements Project and in order to proceed with the construction of the 
Improvements.              
 
There being no further questions from the Board, they thanked Ms. Herrera for her time and she 
dropped off the conference call (at approximately 7:58 p.m.).  A discussion ensued after which the 
majority Board consensus was to accept the $60,000 offer from Lennar thus allowing Lennar to 
commence all necessary procedures in order to allow Turquesa to be annexed into the District, 
thereby directing District Counsel to move forward with the Annexation Agreement process   

 
 2.  Update Regarding Broken Sidewalk at Dry Retention Area 
 
This item was tabled until the next meeting. 
 
K. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Annexation Agreement – Silver Springs Lennar, LLC 
 
Mr. Silva explained the purpose for the Annexation Agreement and stated that the obligations of the 
developer to the District will be reflected in the Annexation Agreement, as discussed during agenda 
item J.1.  A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Ruiz, seconded by Mr. Farhan approving the Annexation Agreement 
between Silver Springs Lennar, LLC and the District, subject to final review and approval by District 
Board, District Counsel and the District Manager.  Upon being put to a vote, the MOTION carried 
on a vote of 2 to 1 with Mr. Ranaudo dissenting.  
 
 2.  Consider Resolution No. 2017-04 – Authorizing District Counsel and District Staff 
to File Petition with Miami-Dade County to Expand the Boundaries of the District 
 
Resolution No. 2017-04 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-04 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING DISTRICT COUNSEL AND DISTRICT STAFF TO FILE 
A PETITION WITH MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA TO EXPAND 
THE BOUNDARIES OF THE DISTRICT; AND PROVIDE AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Silva explained the purpose for the resolution.  A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Ruiz, seconded by Mr. Farhan to adopt Resolution No. 2017-04, as 
presented, authorizing expansion of the District and further authorizing Staff to file the required 
petition documents with the Board of County Commissioners of Miami-Dade County, Florida; and 
further authorizes District officials to execute documents related to the boundary amendment, as so 

Page 7



CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 23, 2017 

7 of 8  

required.  Upon being put to a vote, the MOTION carried on a vote of 2 to 1 with Mr. Ranaudo 
dissenting.  
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2017-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Meeting 
Schedule 
 
Resolution No. 2017-05 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-05 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2017/2018 AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID 
DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Silva provided an explanation for the document and a discussion ensued after which the 
following motion was made: 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Ruiz, seconded by Mr. Farhan and unanimously passed to app rove 
and adopt Resolution No. 2017-05, as presented, thereby setting the fiscal year 2017/2018 regular 
meeting schedule and authorizing the publication of the annual meeting schedule, as required by 
law. 

                                              
L. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Statement of Financial Interests – 2016 Form 1 – Filing Deadline: July 1, 2017 
 
The Board was reminded of the importance of completing and mailing to the Supervisor of Elections 
within the County of residency their individual 2016 Statement of Financial Interests Form 1.  The 
deadline for submittal is July 1, 2017. 
 
 2.  Financial Report 
 
Mr. Silva presented the financials in the meeting book and briefly reviewed them with the Board.  
He pointed out that the available funds as of April 30, 2017, were $131,252.38. 
 
M. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Silva stated that unless an emergency were to arise, the Board will meet again in September or 
October. 
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a MOTION was made by Mr. Farhan, 
seconded by Mr. Ruiz to adjourn the meeting at 8:31 p.m.  There were no objections. 

Page 8



CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 23, 2017 

8 of 8  

 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTESTED BY: 
  
 
 

 
________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary                        Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 9



AGREEMENT 

This Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into as of this ____ day of ___________, 
2017 (the "Effective Date”), by and between: 

CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of 
special purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (“District”); and 

SILVER SPRINGS LENNAR, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Developer”). 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, Developer is the owner of certain real property located in Miami-Dade County, 
Florida, which real property is described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto (“Property”); and 

WHEREAS, Developer desires to: (a) annex the Property into the boundaries of the District (the 
"Annexation") and (b) cause the District to issue special assessment bonds (the "Special Assessment 
Bonds") to pay for the cost of development of certain public infrastructure improvements within the 
Property (the "Property Infrastructure"). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and other 
good and valuable consideration between the parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged by the parties, and subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the parties agree as follows: 

Section 1: INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals stated above are true and 
correct and by this reference are incorporated by reference as a material part of this Agreement. 

Section 2: ANNEXATION AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS.  The District shall: 
(a) obtain all governmental consents and approvals necessary to complete the Annexation, including, but 
not limited to, approval of Miami-Dade County, and any other required governmental entities having 
jurisdiction thereof, and (b) cause the Special Assessment Bonds to be issued in the amount to be 
determined by Developer to pay for all or a portion of the cost of the Property Infrastructure.  The 
parties agree and acknowledge that all costs and expenses associated with the Annexation shall be borne 
by the Developer.  The District shall not be required to fund any costs or expenses associated with the 
Annexation except as set forth in Section 4 hereinafter.  For as long as Developer is the owner of any 
portion of the Property, unless and until the Special Assessments have been paid in full, the District 
acknowledges and agrees that it shall not issue any other special assessment bonds or other debt 
instruments affecting the Property without Developer’s prior written consent, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. Prior to issuance of any special assessment bonds or other debt affecting the 
property, developer shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to remove the property from the 
district and cause the boundaries of the district to be contracted accordingly (the “removal”) upon 
written notice (the “removal notice”) to the district.  Upon receipt of the removal notice, the 
district shall take all action required to remove the property from the district as soon as possible 
after receipt of the removal notice.  The parties agree and acknowledge that all costs and expenses 
associated with the removal shall be borne by the developer. 

Section 3: APPROVAL RIGHTS OF DEVELOPER.  The district hereby acknowledges 
and agrees that developer shall have the express right in its sole and absolute discretion to 

Page 10



 2

approve:  (i) the rate of interest to be paid on the special assessment bonds and (ii) the underwriter 
issuing the special assessment bonds.  In the event either (i) or (ii) is not acceptable to developer, 
the developer shall have the right of removal upon removal notice to the district.  Upon receipt of 
the removal notice, the district shall take all action required to remove the property from the 
district as soon as possible, but in any event, no later than sixty (60) days after receipt of removal 
notice the district shall authorize district officials to proceed with the filing of a petition to 
contract the boundaries of the district.  The failure by district to do so shall be a default under this 
agreement. The parties agree and acknowledge that all costs and expenses associated with the 
removal shall be borne by the developer. 

Section 2:  

Section 3:Section 4: OBLIGATIONS OF DEVELOPER.   

 Within ten (10) days of the latter of the expiration of the thirty (30) day appeal period after the 
effective date of an Ordinance of Miami-Dade County approving the Annexation or if an appeal is 
taken, of the appeal ultimately being concluded in favor of the Annexation, Developer shall make a 
contribution to the District in the amount of SIXTY THOUSAND ($60,000.00) DOLLARS, to be 
utilized by the District in its discretion for capital improvements within the boundaries of the District, 
including, but not limited to, landscaping and monument improvements along NW 179 Lane and NW 87 
Avenue (the “Improvements”).  

 Developer shall provide District with the names and contact information for Developer’s design 
professionals, contractors and vendors associated with the Developer’s project within the District.  
Developer shall also provide District with permitting services for the District’s approved plans for the 
Improvements with Miami-Dade County, including coordination between the District representative, 
District-retained design professionals and contractors and Miami-Dade County, to assist the District in 
the issuance of a permit for the plans for Improvements by Miami-Dade County, at no cost to the 
District.  Developer shall also provide the District with the schedule of work by Developer’s contractors 
in order for the District to coordinate the construction of the Improvements.    

Section 4:Section 5: DEFAULT.  In the event Developer complies with all requirements to 
obtain the Annexation and cause the District to issue the Special Assessment Bonds and the District does 
not cooperate with same and/or the District fails, through its own acts and omissions, to:  (a) timely 
obtain the Annexation or cause the issuance of the Special Assessment Bonds in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement, and/or (b) timely perform any other obligation under this Agreement, 
Developer shall, at its sole discretion, have the right to:  (i) terminate this Agreement and be relieved of 
all further obligations hereunder, and (ii) if the Property has been annexed into the District, but the 
Special Assessment Bonds are not issued, the Developer shall have the right to require the District to 
provide any and all documentation, including, but not limited to, written consent of the District, 
necessary for the Developer to apply for the contraction of the District boundaries to remove the 
Property therefrom, and the District shall immediately reimburse to the Developer all costs and expenses 
incurred in connection with this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all costs and expenses related 
to the Annexation, the Special Assessment Bonds, the Plans and the Improvements.  Developer 
acknowledges that any delays or failure associated with the Annexation or the issuance of the Special 
Assessment Bonds that are not within the control of the District shall not result or be interpreted or 
construed as a default hereunder.   

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering

Page 11



 3

Section 5:Section 6: SUCCESSORS.  The rights and obligations created by this Agreement 
shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of Developer and District, and their respective heirs, 
executors, receivers, trustees, successors and permitted assigns.  Developer shall have the right to assign 
the Agreement to Lennar Homes, LLC or any affiliate of subsidiary without the prior consent of the 
District.  Any other assignments of this Agreement shall be subject to the approval of the non-assigning 
party, not be unreasonably withheld.  

Section 6:Section 7: CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS.  Whenever used the singular number 
shall include the plural, the plural the singular; the use of any gender shall include all genders, as the 
context requires; and the disjunctive shall be construed as the conjunctive, the conjunctive as the 
disjunctive, as the context requires. 

Section 7:Section 8: ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement contains the entire 
understanding between District and Developer, and each agrees that no representation was made by or 
on behalf of the other that is not contained in this Agreement and that in entering into this Agreement 
neither party relied upon any representation not herein contained. 

Section 8:Section 9: CAPTIONS.  The captions for each section of this Agreement are for 
convenience and reference only and do not define, describe, extend, or limit the scope of intent of this 
Agreement, or the intent of any provision hereof. 

Section 9:Section 10: SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Agreement, the deletion of 
which would not adversely affect the receipt of any material benefit by any party hereunder or 
substantially increase the burden of any party hereto, shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable to any 
extent, the same shall not affect in any respect whatsoever the validity or enforceability of the remainder 
of this Agreement. 

Section 10:Section 11: EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS.  Each party covenants and 
agrees that it will at any time and from time to time do such acts and execute, acknowledge, and deliver, 
or cause to be executed, acknowledged, and delivered, such documents reasonably requested by the 
parties necessary to carry out fully and effectuate the transaction herein contemplated and to convey 
good and marketable title for all conveyances subject to this Agreement. 

Section 11:Section 12: COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any 
number of counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all 
such counterparts together shall constitute, but the same instrument. 

Section 12:Section 13: AUTHORITY.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of all parties hereto, each party has complied with all the 
requirements of law, and each party has full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement. 

Section 13:Section 14: AMENDMENTS AND WAIVERS.  This Agreement may not be 
amended, modified, altered, or changed in any respect whatsoever except by a further agreement in 
writing duly executed by the parties hereto. No failure by District or Developer to insist upon the strict 
performance of any covenant, duty, agreement, or condition of this Agreement or to exercise any right 
or remedy upon a breach thereof shall constitute a waiver of any such breach or of such or any other 
covenant, agreement, term, or condition. Either party hereto, by notice, may but shall be under no 

Page 12



 4

obligation to, waive any of its rights or any conditions to its obligations hereunder. No waiver shall 
affect or alter this Agreement, but every covenant, agreement, term, and condition of this Agreement 
shall continue in full force and effect with respect to any other then-existing or subsequent breach 
thereof. 

Section 14:Section 15: APPLICABLE LAW; VENUE.  This Agreement is made and 
shall be construed under the laws of the State of Florida without regard to principles of conflicts of law, 
and venue for purposes of any litigation arising out of this Agreement shall be Miami-Dade County, 
Florida. 

Section 15:Section 16: COSTS AND FEES.  If either party is required to enforce this 
Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that each party shall bear its own 
attorneys' fees and costs incurred for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings, except 
as may be otherwise expressly set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement. 

Section 16: FORCE MAJEURE.  In the event that the performance by either party of any of 
its obligations hereunder is delayed by natural disaster, terrorist activity, war, labor dispute or other 
matter beyond the control of such party, without such party’s fault or negligence, then the party affected 
shall notify the other party in writing of the specific obligation delayed, and the duration of the delay, 
and the deadline for completion of such obligation shall be extended by a like number of days.   

Section 17:  NOTICE.  All notices, demands, requests, and other communications required or 
permitted hereunder shall be in writing.  All such notices, demands, requests and other communications 
(and copies thereof) shall be deemed to be delivered: (a) if sent by messenger, upon personal delivery to 
the party to whom the notice is directed; (b) if sent by facsimile or electronic mail, upon delivery (but 
only so long as a copy of the notice is also sent by another method provided for in this Section); (c) if 
sent by overnight courier, with request for next business day delivery, on the next business day after 
sending; or (d) whether actually received or not, two (2) business days after deposit in a regularly 
maintained receptacle for the United States mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage 
prepaid, addressed as follows (or to such other address as the parties may specify by notice given 
pursuant to this Section): 

If to the District: Century Gardens Community Development District 
c/o Special District Services, Inc. 
2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
Attention: District Manager 
Email address:  asilva@sdsinc.org 

 
With copy to:  Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 

SunTrust Center, Sixth Floor 
515 East Las Olas Boulevard 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 
Attention: Dennis E. Lyles, Esq. 
Email Address: dlyles@bclmr.com 

             
 If to Developer: Silver Springs Lennar, LLC 

Page 13



 5

700 NW 107th Avenue, Suite 400 
Miami, Florida 33172 
Attention:  _________________ 
Facsimile No. ______________ 
E-mail Address:_______________ 
     

 With a copy to:  
 
 
 The respective attorneys for Developer and the District are hereby authorized to give any notice 
pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of their respective clients. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE] 

 

Page 14



 6

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District and Developer have executed this Agreement as of the 
respective dates set forth below. 

Attest:        CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
______________________________ By: _______________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary    Chairperson / Vice Chairperson 
 

Date: _____________, 2017 
 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA   }     
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE } 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _______, 2017, by 
_________________________, as Chairperson/ Vice Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors of the 
CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, who is personally known 
and/or produced ______________________ as identification. 
 
 [SEAL]       _________________________________ 

Notary Public    
Commission Expires: _______________ 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE] 
 

Page 15



 7

 
 
 
Witnesses:        SILVER SPRINGS LENNAR, LLC,  
        a Delaware limited liability company   

       
        
________________________________  By:       

________________________________  Print Name: ____________________  

Print Name              Title: _________________________ 

 
________________________________  Date:  ___________, 2017 

________________________________ 

Print Name 
 
         
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA   } 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE } 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of  __________, 2017, by 
________________, as _____________ of SILVER SPRINGS LENNAR, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company, on behalf of said company.  He or she is personally known to me or has produced 
___________________ as identification. 
 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public  
Commission Expires:__________________ 

 

Page 16



 

{00009  

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
Legal Description of the Property 

#51366807_v3 

Page 17



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL 
YEAR 2016/2017 BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT 
TO CHAPTER 189, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Century Gardens Community Development 
District (“District”) is empowered to provide a funding source and to impose special assessments 
upon the properties within the District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared for consideration and approval an Amended 
Budget. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE CENTURY GARDENS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 
  

                  Section 1. The Amended Budget for Fiscal Year 2016/2017 attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and adopted. 

 
 Section 2. The Secretary/Assistant Secretary of the District is authorized to execute 

any and all necessary transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as 
necessary, to comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 10th day of October, 2017. 
 

 

ATTEST: CENTURY GARDENS 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 
 

Page 18



    Century Gardens
  Community Development District

    Amended Final Budget For
    Fiscal Year 2016/2017

        October 1, 2016 - September 30, 2017

Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Century Gardens
Community Development District

 Financial Report For
September 2017

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32


	Century Gardens Community Development District - October 10, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	May 23, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Discussion Regarding Revised Annexation Agreement – Silver Springs Lennar, LLC
	Consider Resolution No. 2017-06 – Adopting Amended FY 2016/2017 Final Budget
	Financial Report




